PROVI SI ONAL

E/ 1995/ SR 35
20 June 1997

ENGLI SH
Oiginal: FRENCH

ECONOM C AND SOOI AL COUNC L
Subst anti ve session of 1995
PROVI SI ONAL  SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 35t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva,
on Tuesday, 11 July 1995 at 3 p.m

Presi dent : M. CERVAI'S (Cote d' Ivoire)

CONTENTS

CPERATI ONAL ACTIVI TIES OF THE UNI TED NATI ONS FOR | NTERNATI ONAL DEVELOPVENT
COCPERATI ON ( continued)

Corrections to this record should be submtted in one of the working
| anguages. They should be set forth in a nenorandum and al so i ncorporated in
a copy of the record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this

docunment to the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des
Nat i ons, Ceneva.

GE. 95-62780 (E)



E/ 1995/ SR 35
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.20 p.m

CPERATI ONAL ACTIVI TIES OF THE UNI TED NATI ONS FOR | NTERNATI ONAL DEVEL OPVENT
COCPERATI ON ( continued)

D scussion with representatives of field offices

The CHAI RPERSON introduced the representatives of field offices

invited to participate in the discussion: M. Awori, Resident Coordinator
of the United Nations Devel opnent Programme in Zi nbabwe, M. Rahnan,
United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF) representative in China and Mongoli a,
M. Arkutu, United Nations Popul ati on Fund (UNFPA) representative in N geria,
and M. Jones, Wrld Food Programme (WP) representative in Ethiopia
Ms. AWRI (United Nations Devel opnent Programme) said that the

Covernnent of Zi nbabwe had agreed to the establishment of a country strategy
note, which it considered as an effective instrunment for achieving nore
ef fecti ve managenent of the devel opment assi stance provided by United Nations
agenci es. The CGovernment, which was engaged in preparing the third five-year
devel opnent pl an, considered that the note should be focused on the priority
sectors brought to light during the review of the second five-year plan. Sone
of those sectors were appropriate areas for assistance fromUnited Nations
agencies, but the leading role played by the Governnent shoul d not be
sacrificed for the sake of expediency. The inportance of coordination should
not be underestimated, even though it was sinplified considerably when a
Covernnent was in control of a situation and defined national priorities
clearly. Coordination mechani sns had been put in place, for exanple nonthly
i nter-agency meetings, thematic working groups, joint training in relation to
H V/ ALDS and an inter-agency work plan. Exanples of the progranmre approach
were the Action Plan for AIDS, the National Fanmily Planning Programe and
the Poverty Alleviation Action Plan, all of which offered the various
United Nations agencies, the Wrld Bank, NGOs, bilateral organizations and
the CGovernnent an opportunity to work together in programe fornul ati on and
i npl enrent ati on.

The | ack of adequate resources often nade planning difficult or gave
rise to programmre cuts. Not all agencies were authorized by headquarters to

pay their full share of the cost of joint training or other activities. On ng



E/ 1995/ SR 35
page 3

to the continuous decline in devel opnent assistance funding, activities had
been scal ed down, projects left in abeyance and conpetition among the agencies
intensified.

M. ARKUTU (United Nations Popul ation Fund) said that he was
encouraged by the interest generated in the system of resident coordinators
and the desire to strengthen it. A though nmuch still renained to be done to
har moni ze programres and procedures and use resources nore efficiently a great
deal had al ready been achieved in a very short space of time and progress
woul d continue to accel erate. The exanple of Viet Nam considered at the
previ ous neeting, renarkable though it was, was not unique. Cher exanples of
cooperation between United Nations bodies, or between the United Nations and
ot her donors, were provided by N geria, CGhana and the United Republic of
Tanzani a. Such cooperati on woul d have been unthi nkable five years earlier.

It had undoubtedly been facilitated by the rel evant Econom c and Soci al
Counci| and CGeneral Assenbly resolutions, the coordination guidelines adopted
by ot her bodies and the personal relations established between the
representatives of the different agencies, but above all the unequivoca
comm tnent of their governing bodies. However, efforts at coordination were
hanpered by financial obstacles, the lack of staff resources necessary to
achi eve decentralization and representation on the ground and the diversity
of procedures, rules and operating styles.

Wiile the idea of the country strategy note had given rise to a variety
of reactions anong countries despite the efforts made by UNDP and ot her
organi zations to pronote it, the priority accorded to it depended on the
national situation and external factors, which at tinmes nade any kind of
long-termplanning difficult.

M. RAHVAN (UWnited Nations Children's Fund) said that in China
UNI CEF actively supported cooperation anong the different United Nations
agenci es. The devel opnent assi stance whi ch the agenci es provided for China
was very small in conparison to national devel opnent outlays, and there was
therefore every reason to increase its knock-on effect by coordi nating
programres and activities. The inplenmentation of General Assenbly
resol ution 47/199 and the strengthening of the Resident Coordinati on System
had enabl ed great progress to be nade in programre coordi nation, as evidenced

by three exanples. Firstly, China was the country nost seriously affected



E/ 1995/ SR 35
page 4

by 1odine Deficiency D sorder, with 40 per cent of the population at risk

In 1993, in cooperation with the Wrld Bank, UNDP, UNI CEF and WHO had hel d a
hi gh-1 evel advocacy neeting which established a plan of action to elimnate
the deficiency by the year 2000 and pronpted a decision to iodize all edible
salt by 1996. The iodization project had been supported by a $27 mllion | oan
fromthe Wrld Bank and technical assistance from UNDP, UN DO and UN CEF

UNDP, UNI DO and WHO al so assisted the Mnistry of Health in inplenenting the
pl an of action. Secondly, UNI CEF, WHO and the Rotary dub, as well as various
ot her donors, were hel pi ng the Chinese Government to achieve its ai mof

eradi cating polionyelitis by the end of 1995 through the tw ce-yearly

organi zation of National |nmmunization Days, the provision of vaccines and
training of health workers. Thirdly, in connection with the Wrld Sunmt for
Soci al Devel opnent, the Covernnent had | aunched a huge poverty eradication
programe for 80 mllion people living in abject poverty. Under the

| eadership of the Resident Coordinator, the nmenber agencies of the Joint

Consul tative Group on Policy were therefore devel opi ng a nodel progranmme of
poverty eradication in certain regions of the country, with each agency

i npl enenting programme activities falling within its conpetence. The
experience gai ned fromthe project would be fed into national policy for the
eradi cation of poverty.

Simlar progress had been made in the inplenmentation of the operationa
aspects of Ceneral Assenbly resolution 47/199. Wile the preparation of a
country strategy note was still under consideration, the Resident Coordinator,
in consultation with all the agencies, had drafted an internal docunent on
China s priorities and the support received fromthe United Nations system
with regard to econom c and social devel opnent. Ten thenatic working groups
had al so been set up under the | eadership of various agencies to discuss
governnent policy, facilitate the coordination of devel opment aid and
har noni ze the organi zation's progranmme cycles with China's N nth Five-Year
Pl an.

M. JONES (Wrld Food Programme) said that the internationa
community's activities in Ethiopia were |largely devoted to food aid, about a
quarter of which was provided by WFP. I n the absence of a country strategy
note, the Programre had its own strategy which forrmed part of an overal

national policy for disaster prevention and control. United Nations agencies



E/ 1995/ SR 35
page 5

worked well in Ethiopia, in particular when dealing with the chronic food
shortage to which the country was subjected. UNDP, UNI CEF, FAQ UNHCR and WP
hel d nonthly neetings with donors, NG and CGovernnent representatives. Since
t he coordi nation nechani sns worked so well, the food crisis which Ethiopia had
undergone in 1994 had been of a totally different order fromthat experienced
in 1984. In future it would be necessary to retain those nmechani sns despite
the increasing shortfall in resources.

Ms. ALBRECTSEN (Dennark), addressing the representatives present,

asked firstly for their view of the questionnaire which had been used to
collect information for the three-yearly review of operational activities for
devel opnent. In their opinion, which particular subjects should be included
inthe review? Ddthe field representatives think that nore power and
authority had been del egated to them as requested by the CGeneral Assenbly,
and if so, how did they nmake use of it? Thirdly, did they consider that the
guidelines and interpretations given with regard to the programre approach,
national inplementation, resident coordinators and country strategy notes were
sufficient, or were they in need of inprovenent on the occasion of the
three-yearly review? Finally, the UNDP and UNFPA governi ng bodi es had deci ded
to assess how the United Nations Devel opnment Fund for VWnen (UNIFEM operated
both at headquarters and on the ground. Had the representatives been able to
forman idea of the Fund's activities on the ground, and could they indicate
the particul ar aspects which, in their opinion, should be taken into
consideration as part of the assessnent?

M. DAMN (Cbserver for Swaziland), addressing the UN CEF
representative, said that the Fund's Resident Coordinator in his country had
done excellent work in respecting local cultural traditions, to which the
popul ati on was very attached. UN CEF s decision to transfer the official in
question, at a tinme when he had just |aunched a very inportant progranmme with
the University of Swaziland, was, in the opinion of the country's authorities,
extrenely regrettable. He wi shed to know what criteria the Fund followed in
reassigning its field representatives and, in that connection, to what extent
it took account of the programmes under way in different countries.

Wth regard to WP, which did very useful work in devel opi ng countries,
in particular when such countries were faced with infl ows of refugees, he

wonder ed whether, in conjunction with its interventions in emergency



E/ 1995/ SR 35
page 6

situations, the Programme could not help countries, in particular Swazil and,
to define a strategy enabling themto increase their food production
sufficiently so as to be able, in the future, to avoid shortages and arrange
for the transfer of agricultural and food production techni ques which they
needed.

Turning to the role of UNDP, he said that in countries where resident
coordi nators served, they nust adopt as neutral a stance as possible, refrain
fromdi ssemnating all forns of foreign ideology and not interfere in |oca
politics. O course, sound rmanagenent of public affairs was essential, but
resident coordinators could not replace national authorities in establishing
priorities for assistance programmes. It was the task of sovereign
CGovernnents to take that kind of decision

M. PAES SABOA (Brazil) expressed regret that the United Nations

funds, programmes and specialized agencies operating in Latin Arerica were not
represented anmong the participants in the debate. Gven the particul ar
i npl enent ati on met hods of the United Nations agencies' programres in the
regi on, where for exanple there was a very |arge nunber of cost-sharing
agreenents and where NG were often closely involved in project
i npl enentation, it would have been interesting for staff nmenbers of the
Uni ted Nations agencies serving in Latin Arerican countries to provide the
Council with details of their experience
The probl em of coordinati on existed on two levels: within

United Nations agencies and in the Covernment. However, the Governnent was
not a single entity. Responsibilities were shared between various mnistries,
and often al so between the central admnistration and | ocal communities. In
order to guarantee the required | evel of coordination, it therefore seened
essential for the Government to entrust a specific body with the task of
serving as an internmediary with the different United Nations agenci es.
He wi shed to know the opinion of the representatives of United Nations
programres, funds and specialized agencies on the matter and, in particul ar,
whet her resident coordi nators had al ready assi sted Governnents in setting up
coordi nating bodi es of that Kkind.

Ms. AWRI  (United Nations Devel oprment Programme), responding
firstly to the question asked by the representative of Denmark, said that

during the forthcomng three-yearly reviews, it would perhaps be necessary to



E/ 1995/ SR 35
page 7

try to obtain nore information fromusers thenselves, and in particular to ask
the Governments to give their opinion on coordination between the different
Uni ted Nations agenci es.

Turning to the question raised by the Brazilian del egation, she said
that in Zi nbabwe each agency was in contact with the conpetent mnistry,
and that all the mnistries reported to a mnistry responsible for the
coordination of aid programmes. It was very inmportant for the representatives
of United Nations agencies at country level to work in close cooperation with
the technical mnistries. In their role as teaml eaders, resident
coordi nators becane invol ved above all when probl ens arose between the
United Nations agencies and the technical mnistries or the mnistry
responsi bl e for coordination.

The new gui delines for drawing up country strategy notes, which field
staff had hel ped to prepare, were nore concise and nore user-friendly than the
previ ous ones, and entirely satisfactory. The same was true of the guidelines
covering the progranme approach.

Wth regard to UNFEM she pointed out that given the extent of needs
and the limted resources available for dealing with them the Fund, whose
Regional O fice for southern Africa and eastern Africa was in Zi nbabwe, faced
adifficult task. At all events, UNIFEMwas considered to be an extrenely
reliable organi zati on and UNDP frequently made use of its services for al
i ssues concerned with the productive role of wonen

M. ARKUTU (United Nations Popul ati on Fund), responding to the
question asked by the Dani sh delegation on the transfer of decision-making
powers to field offices, said that the decentralization process |aunched
by UNFPA about five years earlier was already very well advanced, since
80 per cent of all projects were currently approved by field offices.
However, that process, in addition to the devel opment of the nationa
i npl enent ati on approach, increased the offices' workload considerably.

The need to strengthen their capacity was therefore becom ng urgent.

The transfer of decision-nmaking powers foll owed precise rules, and
a series of safeguards and checks had been planned in order to avoid
irregularities and ensure that the programes approved and inpl enmented by the

field offices were in keeping with the decisions taken by the Executive Board.



E/ 1995/ SR 35
page 8

Thus, all programme accounts were audited during the inplenentation phase.
The results of the decentralization process were thus far extrenely positive.

Wth regard to the coordination of aid programmes by Covernnents, he
poi nted out that although UNFPA progranmes and projects were devel oped with
the conpetent technical mnistries, the agreenents relating to their
i npl enent ati on were al ways concluded with the body responsible for
coordination, i.e. in nost cases the planning mnistry. Furthernore, all the
nmeetings held to review progress nade on the projects and the inpl enentation
of country programmes were chaired by a representative of the mnistry
responsi bl e for coordination, which was thus regularly informed of the
requests nade to UNFPA by the other mnistries and all the activities
conduct ed on the ground.

M. RAHVAN (UWnited Nations Children's Fund), referring to the
transfer of the Fund's representative serving in Swaziland, said he was
certain that the authorities at headquarters had taken good note of the
concerns expressed by the country's representati ve.

The nethods used for the inquiry into operational activities and their
coordi nation had proved to be satisfactory. The questionnaire sent to staff
away from headquarters had enabled a fairly general but reliable store of
information to be collected. However, it was regrettable that it had not been
possible to test the questionnaire by sending it firstly to a sanple of field
offices fromdifferent agencies which could have made suggesti ons regarding
possi bl e i nprovenents.

As regards UNNFEM he could only say that the Fund had recently opened
an office in China and that he hinself was cooperating very actively with
the UNNFEM representative in China as part of the preparations for the Wrld
Conference on Wnen to be held in Beijing.

Wth regard to the coordination of aid programmes by Covernnents, the
procedure was as described by the UNFPA representative. A though programmi ng
and planning activities for the different projects were conducted in
cooperation with the conpetent mnistries, there was al ways a Gover nnent
mnistry responsible for coordinating all aid programes and ensuring that
such progranmmes were conpatible. In China, for exanple, such matters were

dealt with by the Mnistry of Foreign Trade and Econom c Cooperation



E/ 1995/ SR 35
page 9

M. JONES (Wrld Food Programme), responding briefly to the
qguestion raised by the representative of Swaziland on the fornms of aid which
the Programme coul d provide for his country, said that WP intervened above
all in cases of serious shortages and energencies in order to guarantee
adequat e food supplies to the nost destitute who were threatened by fam ne.
However, it al so endeavoured to assist countries outside periods of crisis by
undertaking different projects designed to pronote job creation, stockpiling
of food reserves and so on

M. MACHN (UWdited Kingdom) noted that despite undoubted progress,
much still remained to be done to achi eve the best possible coordination of
operational activities for devel opment conducted by United Nations agenci es.
He wi shed to know what, in the opinion of the representatives of the
speci al i zed agenci es, programmes and funds participating in the discussion,
the main obstacles were to the strengthening of coordination and what they
considered to be the nost effective neasures for its rapid inprovenent.

M. FETZER (CGermany) pointed out that follow up and eval uati on
activities were extremely inportant so as to be able to judge the
effectiveness of the programmes and projects inplenmented at country | evel and
assess their contribution to the national devel opment process; they must not
only enabl e observations to be made, but above all |essons to be learnt from
t he experience gained and i nprovenents to be nmade with the benefit of
hi ndsight, to the activities conducted in support of devel opment. He wi shed
to know whether, in the opinion of the representatives of the specialized
agenci es, programes and funds participating in the discussion, the nmonitoring
and eval uati on nmechani sns in place were satisfactory or whether they believed
it was necessary to inprove themand, where appropriate, what the nost urgent
reforns necessary were in that regard.

Ms. VO KOFF (Canada) wondered whether the United Nations agencies
had nmade every effort to harnonize not only their progranm ng cycl es but
al so their ways of handling country programme reviews, and whether their
representatives in the field had sought to standardi ze the procedures that
were to be followed in that respect, the diversity of which was certainly a
source of confusion for CGovernnents.

She al so wi shed to know whether in the countries where they were posted

the participants had had occasion, when there was a particularly inportant



E/ 1995/ SR 35
page 10

problemthat called for a decision fromheadquarters, to join forces with
their counterparts fromother organi zations and nake joi nt representations
to their respective headquarters, so that those representati ons would carry
greater weight.

M. TALIKAWJ (Uganda) said that the establishment of the country

strategy note systemwas a cunbersone process to set in notion, especially for
the | east devel oped countries. That was why those countries had for the nost
part still not made it one of their priorities. He asked whether the | ack of
a country strategy note was likely to be a factor that would limt injections
of aid fromthe United Nations system if so, could the UNDP Resi dent

Coordi nator perhaps hel p to conpensate by neans of a country strategy outline?

The principle of national inplenentation produced excellent results on
the ground, but a lack of donestic capacity limted the opportunities for
national authorities to take charge of programmes and projects. Howdid
resi dent coordinators intend to solve the problem especially in the | east
devel oped countries, at a tine when the progranmre approach was to becone nore
general Iy used?

M. AWRI (United Nations Devel opnent Programme) said in answer to
the representative of the United Kingdomthat resident coordinators enjoyed
fairly w de freedomof action and did not suffer excessively fromconstraints
i nposed by headquarters. But decentralization would clearly be nore fruitful
and resident coordinators would be able to take quicker decisions if avail able
resources enabled themto be given broader financial autonony.

In response to the representative of Germany, she said that in Z nbabwe
nmoni toring and eval uati on had not so far been given the attention they
deserved. UNDP was currently doing what it could to renedy that shortcom ng.
For that purpose it needed reliable basic data and had enbarked on gathering
the desired information. Likew se, UNDP had still not attached sufficient
i nportance to periodic reviews of the Z nbabwe country programre. But
preparations for the interimreview were well under way, and it had been
agreed that in that context all agencies working in Z nbabwe would turn their
attention to the country progranmme.

Sonetinmes the United Nations agenci es approached their headquarters as a
team However, each agency conducted its own programm ng, since it managed

its own resources. That was where the country strategy note shoul d be nost



E/ 1995/ SR 35
page 11

useful because it would nmean that it was possible to take an overall view
of the tasks to be undertaken. 1t was al so where budget reductions risked
seriously undermining the credit of the United Nations systemas a whol e.

M. JONES (Wrld Food Programme) said the WFP was only j ust
begi nning to operate the programme approach, and the correspondi ng nechani sm
woul d not be in place before 1996. It was still too soon to say whether it
woul d produce positive results for an agency such as WP.

In Ethiopia the situation had required the organi zati ons present on the
ground to get together and deal collectively with headquarters. The disaster
managenent team set up by WFP had been given the task of collectively briefing
donors, the rest of the international comunity and headquarters.

M. ARKUTU (United Nations Popul ati on Fund) pointed out to the
representative of Germany that it was difficult to nonitor and eval uate the
gl obal effect of devel opment assistance programres. UNFPA m ght not have
found the perfect method, but it relied on the directives received and
systematically applied the nonitoring nechani sns specified at country |evel,
in the shape of tripartite reviews, annual neetings with certain other
agenci es operating on the ground, evaluations conducted in the country itself
and i n-depth eval uations at headquarters. Various independent eval uations
were al so conducted fromtinme to time. UNFPA was therefore kept continuously
i nfornmed of the results obtained

He explained to the representative of Uganda, who had referred to the
paucity of resources available to sone countries to adopt fully the principle
of national inplenentation, that UNFPA was engaged i n enhancing the capacities
of countries by in-country training and al so by organi zi ng out-of-country
training; it also operated intercountry training.

UNFPA took care to harnonize its action with that of the various other
ai d organi zati ons, such as UNICEF, by carefully studying the basic docunents
in which they set out their own progranmes.

M. RAHVAN (United Nations Children's Fund), replying to the
representative of the United Kingdom said that coordination at country |eve
had i nproved considerably in the past 12 years or so. Progress had been such
that it mght even be necessary to exercise caution | est the concern for
coordi nation turn into an obsession and end up reducing the activities of the

Resi dent Coordinator to a state of paralysis. He suggested that it mght be



E/ 1995/ SR 35
page 12

worth defining the m ninumdesirable | evel of coordination. Ways of

strengt hening the United Nations devel opnent systemwoul d henceforth invol ve
the recruitnment of talented individuals rather than coordination. As for ways
of inproving coordination with the specialized agencies, it was for the
Counci|l to pinpoint them

Replying to the del egation of Canada, he said that a periodic review of
the country programme for China had been conducted in 1993, before the new
programm ng cycle had begun. Al agencies operating on the ground had taken
part in it, and the exchanges had been very fruitful

He told the representative of Gernmany that UN CEF was systematically
and regularly carrying out nonitoring and eval uati on exercises to gauge the
effects of its programres, the scope and objectives of which were defined in
a very precise manner. The investigations and assessnents were undertaken at
various |levels, with eval uations being made of each project and programme.

UN CEF had continuous access to information on the results of its activities.

The cruci al problemrenained that ever greater demands were nade on the
ai d agencies, but they had fewer and fewer resources at their disposal to neet
t hose denands.

Ms. AWRI (United Nations Devel opnent Programme) said in reply to
the representative of Uganda that in Zi nbabwe UNDP had been at pains to ensure
that the adoption of the principle of national inplenmentation did not put an
excessi ve burden on the national authorities. UNDP currently favoured broader
application of that principle through its adopti on by donors.

In her capacity as a Resident Coordinator, she had becone accustoned to
taki ng on many coordi nati on tasks. Her heaviest responsibility was that of
fund-rai si ng.

M. CONTIN  (France) observed that at the previous meeting the
Resi dent Coordinator in Canbodi a had said that UNDP publications were
distributed in Viet Namin Vi etnamese and English. He wished to rem nd UNDP
representatives on the ground of the need to respect the nultilingualism of
the United Nations.

He asked how resident coordinators, in determning priorities, were
appl yi ng the decisions of the UNDP Coverni ng Council and whether or not they
took account of the new nethods of action which had been adopted, and al so how

they were negotiating with Governnents to ensure that the directives were



E/ 1995/ SR 35
page 13

applied. He also asked Ms. Awori how, once the next programm ng cycle was in
operation, she was going to be able to allocate 20 per cent of resources for
national inplenentation in Z nbabwe.

Ms. ROUCHET (United Nations Educational, Scientific and CQultural
O gani zation) said that the types of coordination and collaboration to be
found on the ground were very varied. Wile UNESCO had no per nanent
representation in Viet Nam it had undertaken a sectoral analysis there in
col l aboration with UNDP on the subject of education and human resources. It
was enpl oying 80 Vietnanese in that work, and confined itself to the role of a
background pl ayer in support of the Government of Viet Nam The key factor as
she saw it was to ensure that there was conplenmentarity of activities. It was
that issue of permanent interaction which the Council would benefit from going
into nore thoroughly.

M. BRUN (Norway) noted that sonme field representatives had not
replied to the question asked by the representative of the United Ki ngdom
about the constraints that hanpered cooperation. D d they consider that the
princi pal obstacles were due to insufficient decentralization and the absence
of guidelines?

The General Assenbly had authorized the UNDP resident coordinators to
play the leading role in energency situations. Had that rol e been defined
with sufficient clarity? Wre the instructions given to the resident
coordi nators on reporting lines clear enough?

M. QJIIMBA (N geria) considered that it would be a mstake to
entrust cooperation and coordination on the ground exclusively to a single
institution. In his opinion coordination was autonati c once the institutions
in question were assured of being given sufficient resources to operate.

M. SH BATA (Japan) said that to judge fromthe replies that had
been given, great progress had been made in the area of coordination, and | ack
of resources woul d appear to be the only obstacle. He would like to know
whet her coordination, both within the United Nati ons systemand with the
Wrld Bank, the other donors and non-governmental organizations (NG3s), was
as satisfactory in the other countries as it seenmed to be in Viet Nam and
whet her the United Nations agencies were participating in the meetings of
consultative bodies. He also asked in what way the United Nations system

m ght be nore closely associated with drawing up structural adjustnent



E/ 1995/ SR 35
page 14

programres, wWith a viewin particular to making sure that there was a socia
safety net to ntigate their adverse consequences. According to the
Secretary-General of the United Nations, the Wrld Food Programe woul d
henceforth be dealing nore with energency aid operations than with food
security. Wiat woul d then happen to the necessary continuity between

emer gency operati ons and devel oprent ?

M. ARKUTU (United Nations Popul ati on Fund) said he had not w shed
to give the inpression that everything to do with coordi nati on was operating
perfectly, but he had enphasi zed that progress was being nade nore rapidly
than had been envi saged, even if it varied fromcountry to country. The |ack
of resources was clearly not the only obstacle to coordination at country
level; there were others relating in particular to the degree of
decentralization on the ground and the diversity of the procedures being
followed by the different organi zati ons. The way UNFPA operated was very
different fromthat of UNNCEF or WP, and that gave rise to sone constraints;
for exanple, in N geria UNICEF had four regional offices in addition to its
main office in Lagos, and each one was bigger than the one UNFPA office
So the Resident Coordinator could not participate in all the neetings on
the various different matters.

Participation by United Nations agencies in neetings of consultative
bodi es had recently increased, especially in the case of Viet Nam but it was
important not to | ose sight of the fact that the United Nations system had
al so played a nmajor role in coordinating assistance in the past, especially
i n Zi nbabwe or Nam bi a when those countries had gai ned their independence.

As for the participation of United Nations agencies in the formul ati on of
structural adjustnent programmes, such progranmres gave rise to highly
techni cal discussions that were enveloped in a degree of nystery and hardly
I ent thenselves to participation of that kind.

M. JONES (Wrld Food Programme) said that as far as WP was
concerned the introduction of progranmmng should nmean that the natter of
insufficient decentralization noted by the representative of Norway could
be renedi ed. However, the key question was not decentralization of
adm ni stration and personnel nanagenent but decentralization of the power

to use resources with flexibility.



E/ 1995/ SR 35
page 15

Normal |y the Resident Coordinator saw to the managenent of humanitarian
aid, and that principle was accepted by all agencies. The Resident
Coordi nator, noreover, represented the Department of Humanitarian Affairs when
DHA had no local office. However, the situation was nore conplicated in cases
where there were transboundary probl ens such as in Pakistan, fromwhere the
situation in Afghanistan was handled. Matters also had to be clarified when
the Secretary-CGeneral appointed a special representative.

Contrary to what the representative of Japan had understood, WP
continued to have as its mssion efforts to support econom ¢ and soci a
devel opnent through food aid, even if enphasis seened to be pl aced
i ncreasi ngly on emergency operations. The Governnent of Ethiopia had arrived
at the conclusion that the provision of food for work in food deficit areas
enabl ed energency situations to be addressed while at the sane tine ensuring
recovery and devel opnent, and therefore fitted into a conti nuum

Ms. AWRI (United Nations Devel opnent Programme) said she intended
to present to the CGovernnent of Zi nbabwe the new programm ng systemrecently
adopted by the UNDP Executive Board, and would take note of its reaction
Being still very busy with the end of the fifth programm ng cycl e, she was
not yet in a positionto reply to the question put by the representative of
France.

UNDP was very closely associated with structural adjustnent processes
which in general it preferred to call reformprocesses. |In Zi nbabwe UNDP was
supporting the Government's programe of economc reforns and was involved in
a nunber of projects. It was also encouraging the Governnent to denonstrate
greater openness when structural adjustnent measures or economc reforns were
bei ng drawn up, in other words not to confine itself to discussing themwith
the international financial institutions but to ensure the invol venent of the
popul ati on, who in the final analysis would bear the burden. It was not the
role of the United Nations systemto follow behind the financial institutions
and set in place social safety nets. At present the Regional Ofice for
Africa was preparing the resident coordinators to take part in the
consul tative group mneetings.

M. LEENSTRA (Netherlands), noting that in Zi nbabwe the UNDP

Resi dent Coordi nat or was devoting nuch of her time to nobilizing funds, wanted

to know in detail the kind of difficulties she was encountering. Wile she



E/ 1995/ SR 35
page 16

was not supposed to be engaged in selling, the quality of the work that was
done and the effectiveness of the programmes neverthel ess constituted a
powerful argument to attract funds. It would be worth knowi ng how the
Uni ted Nations agencies were denonstrating their useful ness at the country
level, and how their role could be nmade nore visible by pinpointing the areas
i n which they were indi spensabl e.

M. KELLOMY (Australia) wanted to return to the subjects of

nmoni toring and eval uation. There was a need to determ ne the global inpact
of the activities carried out by the United Nations system in other words
to find out whether the activities that were inplenmented on the ground were
successful. It was not nerely a natter of drawing | essons fromprojects in
order to apply themto the planning of new operations; rather, it was the
actual value of the action taken by the United Nations on the ground. In
terns sinply of the volune of the resources commtted, the United Nations
systemwas dwarfed by the Wrld Bank in nost countries, and in sonme it was
dwarfed by bilateral organizations. Consequently, he would |like to hear
reports fromrepresentatives of field offices on their experience in the
vari ous countries

M. JONES (Wrld Food Programme), replying to the representative
of Australia, recalled that alnost 1 million people had died of hunger in
Ethiopia in 1984. At the begi nning of 1994 sone 7 nillion Ethiopians had been
once again threatened by fam ne, but by the end of that year the Governmnent
was stating that the fam ne had been averted, although there had been severa
thousand victins. The United Nations systemhad played an inportant role in
achi eving that outcone.

M. ARKUTU (United Nations Popul ation Fund) said that some
15 years previously only two countries in sub-Saharan Africa had had an
of ficial population policy; that figure was now 80 per cent, and gave sone
idea of UNFPA' s influence. There had also been a considerable increase in
awar eness in sub-Saharan Africa of the relationship between popul ati on and
devel opnent issues. That was not solely due to the activities of the Fund,
but it had played a promnent role in encouragi ng such awareness and hel pi ng
countries to draw up and inpl enent programmes to solve their popul ation

probl ens, taking account of their own situations and priorities.



E/ 1995/ SR 35
page 17

Ms. AWRI (United Nations Devel opnent Programme) said that in
order to neasure how successful its activities had been UNDP endeavoured to
determne the extent to which it was assisting governnental and other nationa
entities to focus on a critical problemand then to apply thensel ves to
solving it. In Zi nbabwe, for exanple, the Governnent was inplenenting a
wi de-rangi ng programme in the area of the environnent and another on the
managenent of water resources, but it had at first neglected the question
of water storage; UNDP was therefore doing everything it could to nmake the
Covernnent aware of the problem drawi ng up an action plan which woul d deal
with it and then getting other donors interested, because it did not have the
resources necessary to finance the plan conpletely. The extent to which UNDP
managed to attract other donors was another criterion for evaluating its
success.

M. RAHVAN (United Nations Children's Fund) said that the question
asked by the representative of Australia was both interesting and conpl ex,
since it involved the question of evaluating actions above and beyond the
i mredi at e i npact of progranmmes and considering the influence a given agency
had at country level. UNCEF s contribution in China, where a fifth of the
world's children were living, was mnimal in absolute value, but the Fund' s
activities there were noteworthy. UN CEF had succeeded in persuading the
Covernnent to launch a national programme for children to the year 2000, which
set out very clear objectives. UN CEF had al so encouraged the adoption of
| egi sl ative neasures to give effect to the Convention on the R ghts of the
Child. Many other nultilateral bodies, including the Wrld Bank, approached
UN CEF for technical assistance, advice or support for their programmes.

UNI CEF' s nodest pilot projects were sonetinmes the basis for |arger-scale
projects, as had been the case with a maternal and child health project which
the Wrld Bank had extended to ei ght Chinese provinces, or the elenentary and
primary education programme whi ch had been | aunched in collaboration with
UNESQO and which the Wrld Bank had extended into seven provinces. Finally,
UNI CEF had access to those responsible for drawing up policies, and it was
consulted on matters concerning children. Its influence was therefore far
frombeing negligible, bearing in mnd the relative nodesty of its

contri bution



E/ 1995/ SR 35
page 18

M. KELLOMY (Australia) said it was clear fromthe replies which

had been given that the real value of the activities carried out by the
United Nations systemhad little to do with the size of the financial
contributions, and that it was therefore necessary to acquire nore infornation
about the nature of actual contributions at country |evel and the precise
content of the activities inplenented by the various organi zati ons. The
figures were always relative and had to be put in perspective; the exanples
that had been cited were not without interest, but the question should be
studied in nuch greater depth.

M. PAES SABOA (Brazil) added that it was al so necessary to

eval uate the effectiveness of bilateral cooperation. It was possible to find
out what was happening in one's own country on the bilateral level, but in
other countries it was nore problenatic. In the United Nations system
everyone had his say, and that was not the case in the bilateral context;
there was rmuch to be done to inprove both multilateral and bilatera

cooper ati on.

The neeting rose at 6.05 p. m




